
The report accompanying these financial statements was issued by 
BOO USA, LLP. a Delaware limited liability partner.>hip. and U1e U.S. member of 
BOO International limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and fonns part 
of the international 800 network of independent member finns. 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Basic Financial Statements, Required 
Supplementary Information, Supplementary 
Information, and Single Audit Reports 
Year Ended December 31 , 2014 

IBDQ 





City of Whittier, Alaska 

Basic Financial Statements, 
Required Supplementary Information, 

Supplementary Information, 
and Single Audit Reports 

Year Ended December 31 , 2014 





City of Whittier, Alaska 

Table of Contents 

Exhibit Page 
FINANCIAL SECTION 

Independent Auditor's Report 1-3 

Basic Financial Statements 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 
Statement of Net Position A-1 6 
Statement of Activities A-2 7 

Fund Financial Statements: 
Governmental Funds: 

Balance Sheet B-1 8 
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Position B-2 9 
Statement of Revenues , Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances B-3 10 
Reconciliation of Change in Fund Balances of 

Governmental Funds to Statement of Activities B-4 11 
Enterprise Funds: 

Statement of Net Position C-1 12 
Statement of Revenues , Expenses and 

Changes in Net Position C-2 13 
Statement of Cash Flows C-3 14-15 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 16-32 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual : 

General Fund D-1 34 

Supplementary Information 

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules: 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds: 

Combining Balance Sheet E-1 36 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balances E-2 37 

General Fund : 
Balance Sheet F-1 38 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual F-2 39-44 





FINANCIAL SECTION, continued 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Table of Contents 

Supplementary Information, continued 

Exhibit Page 

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules, continued: 
Stat ement of Revenues , Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balance: 
Cruise Ship Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Environmental Habitat Restoration Special Revenue Fund 
Emergency Management Services Special Revenue Fund 
Shotgun Cove Capital Project Fund 
General Reserve Capital Project Fund 
Railroad Improvement Capital Project Fund 
Public Works/Safety Complex Capital Project Fund 

Enterprise Funds: 
Small Boat Harbor: 

Statement of Net Position 
Statement of Revenues , Expenses and 

Changes in Net Position 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Water and Sewer: 
Statement of Net Position 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Parking: 
Statement of Net Position 
Statement of Revenues , Expenses and 

Changes in Net Position 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Schedule of St ate Financial Assistance 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
and Schedule of State Financial Assistance 

G-1 
G-2 
G-3 
G-4 
G-5 
G-6 
G-7 

H-1 

H-2 
H-3 

H-4 

H-5 
H-6 

H-7 

H-8 
H-9 

1-1 

1-2 

45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 

52 

53-54 
55 

56 

57 
58 

59 

60 
61 

62 

63 

64 





City of Whittier, Alaska 

Table of Contents 

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION 

Independent Auditor ' s Report on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor 's Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal 
Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required 
by OMB Circular A-133 

Independent Auditor 's Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the State of 
Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Corrective Action Plan 

66-67 

68-69 

70-71 

72-77 

78 

79-80 



This page intentionally left blank. 



Financial Section 



This page intentionally left blank. 



IBDQ 

Independent Auditor 's Report 

Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Tel: 907-278-8878 
Fax: 907-278-5779 
www.bdo.com 

3601 C Street, Suite 600 
Anchorage, AK 99503 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of 
Whittier, Alaska, as of and for the year ended December 31 , 2014 and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Whittier's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents . 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of thes.e financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor 's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity 's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity 's internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion . An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

BOO USA, LLP , a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BOO International limited, a UK company liinited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BDO network of independent member firms. 

BOO is the brand name for the 600 network and for each of the BOO Member Finns. 



Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fai rly, in all material respects , 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Whittier, Alaska , as of 
December 31 , 2014, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America . 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America , require that the 
budgetary comparison information for the General Fund on page 34 be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America , which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us wit h sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Management has omitted the management 's discussion and analysis that accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not 
affected by this missing information . 

Supplementary Information 
Our audit for the year ended December 31 , 2014 was conducted for the purpose of forming 
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise City of Whittier 's basic financial 
statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards , the Schedule of 
State Financial Assistance, and the combining and individual fund fi nancial statements and 
schedules, listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards and the Schedule of State Financial Assistance are required by OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations and the State of Alaska 
Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits, respectively . 
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The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, the Schedule of State Financial 
Assistance , and the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules listed in the 
table of contents, are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements for t he year ended December 31 , 2014 and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with audit ing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America . In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary 
information is fairly stated , in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as 
a whole for the year ended December 31 , 2014. 

We also previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the basic financial statements of City of Whittier as of and for the year ended 
December 31 , 2013 (not presented herein), and have issued our report thereon dated June 7, 2014, 
which contained unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund , and the aggregate remaining fund 
information. The individual fund financia l statements and schedules for the year ended December 
31 , 2013 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 2013 
financial statements. The individual fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 2013 basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare those basic financial statements or to 
those basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America . In our opinion, the 
individual fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole for the year ended December 31 , 2013. 

Other Reporting Required by Government AudWng Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 
24, 2015 on our consideration of City of Whittier's internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and ot her matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing , and not 
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering City of Whittier 's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Anchorage, Alaska 
August 24, 2015 
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Exhibit A-1 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Statement of Net Position 

Governmental Business-type 

December 31 , 20 14 Activities Activities Total 

Assets 

Cash and investments $ 2,393,843 $ 3,071,431 $ 5,465 ,274 

Receivables, net where applicable of 

allowance for doubtful accounts 944,862 348, 195 1,293, 057 

Prepaid items 57,246 26,597 83 ,843 

Restri cted cash and investments 2,334, 974 1,802,625 4, 137,599 

Land and construction in progress 972,423 696,331 1,668,754 

Other capital assets , net of depreciation 12,708,349 20,321, 565 33 ,029,914 

Total Assets $ 19,411, 697 $ 26,266,744 $ 45,678 ,441 

Liabilities and Net Posit ion 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 145,691 $ 464, 121 $ 609 ,812 

Accrued payroll and benefits 24,848 20,807 45,655 

Unearned revenue 18,873 84,222 103,095 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year: 
Accrued leave 26,310 17,641 43 ,951 

Litigation settlement 23,500 23 ,500 

Noncurren t liabilities - due after one year 

Li tigation settlement 102, 734 102,734 

Total Liabilities 341 ,956 586, 791 928,747 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 13,680,772 21,017,896 34, 698 ,668 

Restricted - cruise shi p projects 2,334,974 1,802,625 4, 137, 599 

Unrestricted 3,053, 995 2,859,432 5,913,427 

Total Net Position 19,069,741 25 ,679, 953 44, 749,694 

Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 19,41 1,697 $ 26 ,266,744 $ 45, 678,441 

See accompanying notes to basic f inancial statements. 
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Exhibit A-2 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Statement of Activities 

Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 
Changes in 

Program Revenues Net Position 

Fees , Operating Capital 
Fines Et Grants Et Grants Et Govern - Business-

Charges for Contri - Contri- mental type 

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Expenses Services butions butions Activities Activities Total 

Governmental Activities 
General government s 851 ,874 s 270,619 s s s (581 ,255) s s (581 ,255) 

Public safety 852 ,966 94,307 2,700 (755 ,959 ) (755 , 959) 
Public works 848 , 121 27,859 42,976 2,370,371 1,593 ,085 1,593 ,085 

Total Governme ntal Activit ies 2,552 ,961 392, 785 45 ,676 2,370,371 255,871 255 ,871 

Busi ness-type Act ivit ies 
Small boat harbor 2,032 ,698 1,168,364 65 ,987 197,376 (600,971) (600, 971) 
Water and sewer 730,076 476,924 43 , 137 (210,015) (210,015) 
Parking 91 ,867 121 ,351 3,661 33 , 145 33, 145 

Total Business-type Act ivities 2,854,641 1,766,639 112,785 197,376 (777,841) (777,841) 

Total s 5,407,602 s 2, 159 ,424 s 158,461 $2 ,567,747 255 ,871 (777,841) (521 ,970) 

Ge neral Revenues 
Real and personal property taxes 621 , 136 621 ,136 
Business transportation taxes 270,666 270 ,666 
Sales taxes 595,691 595 ,691 
Commercial passenger vessel tax 950,635 950,635 
Grants and entitlements not restricted 

to a specific purpose 342,613 342,613 
Investment income (loss) 12,099 (483) 11 ,616 
Other 23 ,766 23 , 766 

Transfers (2,401 ,035 ) 2,401 ,035 

Tot al Ge neral Revenues and Transfe rs 415 ,571 2,400,552 2,816, 123 

Change in Net Posi t ion 671,442 1,622,711 2,294, 153 

Net Position, beginning 18,398,299 24,057,242 42 ,455 ,541 

Net Posit ion, e nding s 19,069,741 s 25 ,679,953 s 44,749,694 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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December 31 , 2014 

Assets 

Cash and investments 
Receivables , net where applicable of 

allowance for doubtful accounts 
Prepaid items 
Restricted cash and investments 
Due from other funds 

Total Assets 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, 
and Fund Balances 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Unearned revenue 
Due to other funds 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows 
Taxes and escrows , not available 

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable - prepaid items 
Restricted - cruise ship projects 
Committed - capital projects 
Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, 
and Fund Balances 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet 

Major Funds 

Cruise 
Ship 
Tax 

Special 
General Revenue 

$ 2,001 ,086 $ 

82 ,981 
57,246 

2,334,974 
773 ,269 

$ 2,914,582 $ 2,334, 974 $ 

$ 50,472 $ $ 
24,848 
13 ,023 

88 ,343 

69 ,452 

57,246 
2,334,974 

2,699,541 

2,756, 787 2,334,974 

$ 2,914,582 $ 2,334,974 $ 

Shotgun 
Cove 

Capital 
Project 

814,210 

814,210 

80,584 

733,626 

814,210 

814,210 

Exhibit B-1 

Total 
Govern-

Nonmajor mental 
Funds Funds 

$ 392,757 $ 2,393 ,843 

47 ,671 944,862 
57,246 

2,334,974 
773,269 

$ 440,428 $ 6,504, 194 

$ 14,635 $ 145,691 
24,848 

5,850 18,873 
39,643 773,269 

60 , 128 962,681 

69,452 

57,246 
2,334,974 

380,300 380,300 
2,699 ,541 

380,300 5,472 ,061 

$ 440 ,428 $ 6,504,194 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

8 



City of Whittier, Alaska 

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

to Statement of Net Position 
December 31, 2014 

Total fund balances for governmental funds 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in 

the Statement of Net Position is different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 

financial resources and therefore are not reported 

in the funds. These assets, net of accumulated 

depreciation consisted of: 

Land and land improvement s 

Construction in progress 

Buildings and facilities 

Roads and infrastructure 

Equipment 

Accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for 

current period expenditures and therefore are 

deferred in t he funds . These assets consist of: 

Delinquent property taxes receivable 

Deferred escrows receivab le 

Total other long-term assets 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the 

current period and therefore are not reported as 

fund liabili ties . 

Accrued leave 

Litigation settlement 

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities 

s 100,000 

872 ,423 

500,053 

12, 148,387 

2, 164,831 

(2, 104, 922) 

55,629 

13,823 

(26 ,310) 

(126,234) 

Exhibit B-2 

s 5,472,061 

13,680,772 

69 ,452 

(152 ,544) 

s 19,069,741 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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Exhibit B-3 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Governmental Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes i n Fund Balances 

Major Funds 

Shotgun Total 
Cruise Ship Cove Non- Govern-
Tax Special Capital major mental 

Year Ended December 31, 2014 General Revenue Project Funds Funds 

Revenues 

Taxes $1 ,482, 165 $ $ $ $ 1,482, 165 
Federal government 84,978 1,530,263 23 ,587 1,638,828 
State of Alaska 458,825 950,635 725,561 93 ,660 2,228,681 
Investment income and penalties 12,081 18 12,099 
Rental and lease revenue 153,664 153,664 
Other 80, 907 80,907 

Total Revenues 2,272,620 950,635 2,255,824 117,265 5, 596,344 

Expenditures 

Current: 
General government 850,772 15,370 866, 142 
Public safety 814,970 814,970 
Public works 288,665 288,665 

Capital outlay 336, 346 2,255,824 151,072 2,743,242 

Total Expenditu re s 1, 954,407 351,716 2,255,824 151,072 4,713,019 

Excess of Reve nues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 318,213 598,919 (33 ,807) 883,325 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Transfers in 158,000 158,000 
Transfers out (2 ,222,690) (2 ,222,690) 

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 158,000 (2 ,222,690) (2 ,064,690) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 476,213 (1,623 ,771 ) (33, 807) (1, 181 , 365) 

Fund Balances, beginning 2,280,574 3,958,745 414, 107 6,653 ,426 

Fund Balances, e nding $ 2,756,787 $ 2,334,974 $ $ 380,300 $ 5,472,061 

See accompanying notes to basic financia l statements. 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Reconciliation of Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

to Statement of Activities 
Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in 

the Statement of Activities is different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 

However on the Statement of Activities, depreciation 

expense is recognized to allocate the cost of these items over 

their estimated useful lives. This is the amount by which 

capital outlays ($2,406,897) exceeded depreciation expense 

($347,591) and loss on disposal ($243,599). 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide 

current financial resources are not reported as revenues 

in the funds . This is the amount of the increase in deferred 

revenue related to escrows and property taxes . 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities 

do not require the use of current financial resources 

and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 

governmental funds. 

Accrued leave decrease 

Litigation settlement decrease 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

Exhibit B-4 

s (1,181,365) 

s 

1,815,707 

5,328 

8,006 

23,766 

671 ,442 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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Exhibit C-1 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Enterprise Funds 

Statement of Net Position 

Nonmajor 
Major Funds Fund 

Small Water Total 
Boat and Enterprise 

December 31 , 2014 Harbor Sewer Parking Funds 

Assets 

Current Assets 

Cash and investments $ 1,263, 187 $ 1,416,511 $ 391 ,733 $ 3,071 ,431 

Receivables, net of allowance 333,007 15, 188 348, 195 

Prepaid expenses 20,665 4,405 1, 527 26 , 597 

Restricted cash and investments 1,802,625 1,802,625 

Total Current Assets 3,419,484 1,436, 104 393,260 5,248,848 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Plant and improvements 17,246, 981 13,744, 331 30,991 , 312 

Equipment 249,525 141 ,254 390, 779 

Construction in progress 696,331 696 ,331 

Total property, plant and equipment 18, 192,837 13,885,585 32,078,422 

Less accumulated depreciation (5 ,423 ,892 ) (5,636,634) (11 ,060,526) 

Net Property, Plant and Equipment 12,768,945 8,248,951 21 ,017,896 

Total Assets $ 16, 188,429 $ 9,685,055 $ 393,260 $ 26 ,266,744 

Liabilities and Net Position 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 454,973 $ 9,070 $ 78 $ 464, 121 

Accrued payroll and benefits 14,265 5,805 737 20,807 

Unearned revenue · moorage 84,222 84,222 

Accrued leave 8,457 9,088 96 17,641 

Total Current Liabilities 561 ,917 23 ,963 911 586,791 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 12,768,945 8,248,951 21 ,017,896 
Restricted · cruise ship projects 1,802,625 1,802,625 

Unrestricted 1,054,942 1,412,141 392,349 2,859,432 

Total Net Position 15,626, 512 9,661 ,092 392, 349 25 ,679,953 

Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 16, 188,429 $ 9,685,055 $ 393 ,260 $ 26 ,266,744 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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Exhi bit C-2 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Enterprise Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 

in Net Position 

Non major 

Major Funds Fund 

Small Water Total 

Boat and Enterprise 

Year Ended December 31 , 2014 Harbor Sewer Parking Funds 

Operating Revenues $ 1,147,664 $ 476,831 $ 121 ,351 $ 1,745,846 

Operating Expe nses 

Salaries and employee benefits 608,046 258 ,322 61, 123 927,491 

Administrative expenses 130, 187 42, 935 17,352 190,474 

Services and supplies 553 ,589 107,145 13,392 674, 126 

Depreciation 740,876 321 ,674 1,062,550 

Total Operating Expenses 2,032,698 730,076 91,867 2,854,641 

Income (Loss) from Operations (885,034) (253 ,245) 29,484 (1 , 108,795 ) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Alyeska cont ract 20,700 20, 700 
State PERS relief 65,987 43 , 137 3,661 11 2,785 

Investment income (loss) (483) (483) 
Ot her 93 93 

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 86 ,204 43 ,230 3,661 133 ,095 

Net Income (Loss) Before Contributions 

and Transfers (798 ,830) (21 0,015) 33 ,145 (975,700) 

Capital contri butions 533 ,721 533 ,721 

Transfers in 2,064,690 2,064,690 

Change in Net Position 1,799 ,581 (210,015) 33 ,145 1,622,711 

Net Position, beginning 13,826,931 9,871 , 107 359 ,204 24,057,242 

Net Position, e nding $ 15,626,51 2 $ 9,661,092 $ 392,349 $ 25 ,679,953 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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Exhibit C-3 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Enterprise Funds 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Nonmajor 
Major Funds Fund 

Small Water Total 
Boat and Enterprise 

Year Ended December 31 , 2014 Harbor Sewer Parking Funds 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Recei pts from customers and users s 1,265,371 s 469,776 s 121,351 s 1,856,498 

Payme nts to suppliers (6 52, 581) (146 ,242) (31 ,523) (830,346) 

Payments to e mployees (547,266) (222,827) (59,478) (829 ,571) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 65 ,524 100,707 30,350 196,581 

Cash Flows for Capital and Related Financing Activit ies 

Transfers in 2,064,690 2,064,690 

Net cash flows for ca pita l and related fina ncing activities 2,064,690 2,064,690 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Investment loss (483 ) (483) 

Net cash flows from investing activities (483) (483) 

Net Increase in Cash and Investments 2, 129,731 100,707 30, 350 2,260,788 

Cash and Investments , beginning 936,081 1,315,804 361 , 383 2,613 ,268 

Cash and Investments , ending s 3,065,812 s 1,41 6,511 $ 391,733 $ 4,874,056 

Reconci liation to State ment of Net Assets 

Cash and investments $ 1,263, 187 $ 1,416 ,511 s 391 , 733 $ 3,071 ,431 
Restricted cash and investments 1,802,625 1,802,625 

Total cash and investments $ 3,065,812 $ 1,416 ,511 s 391 , 733 $ 4,874,056 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Enterprise Funds 

Statement of Cash Flows, continued 

Major Funds 

Small Water 

Boat and 

Year Ended December 31 , 2014 Harbor Sewer 

Reconciliati on of Income (Loss) from Operati ons to 

Ne t Cash From Operati ng Activitie s 

Income (loss) from operations $ (885 ,034) $ (253 ,245) 

Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from operations 

to net cash flows from operating activities : 

Depreciation 740,876 321 ,674 
Nonoperating revenues 20,700 93 
Noncash expense - PERS relief 65,987 43, 137 
Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts 21 ,891 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 

Accounts receivable 27,857 (7, 148) 

Prepaid expenses (480) 845 
Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 

Accounts payable 31 ,675 2,993 
Accrued payroll and benefits 4,020 (198) 
Accrued leave (9,227) (7,444) 
Unearned revenue - moorage 47,259 

Net Cash Flows from Operati ng Activities $ 65 ,524 $ 100,707 

Noncash Capital and Rela te d Fina ncing Activities 

Accounts payable fo r capita l acq uisition $ 394, 750 $ 
Transfer of ca pita l asse ts from other fun d $ 336,346 $ 

Exhibit C-3, continued 

Non major 

Fund 

Total 

Enterprise 

Parking Funds 

$ 29 ,484 $ (1,108,795) 

1,062, 550 

20,793 
3,661 112,785 

21 ,891 

20,709 
(857) (492) 

78 34,746 

64 3,886 
(2,080) (18,751) 

47,259 

$ 30,350 $ 196, 581 

$ $ 394, 750 

$ $ 336, 346 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
December 31, 2014 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting Entity 

The City of Whittier was incorporated in 1969 under the laws of the State of Alaska as a second-class 
city. The City operates under a Council - Manager form of government and provides a full range of 
services to its citizens including public safety, street maintenance, water, sewer, boat harbor, and 
general administration. 

The financial statements included in this report are for City of Whittier only. There are no 
component units for which City of Whittier is financially accountable, nor do any special financial 
relationships exist between the City and any other entity. 

The accounting policies of City of Whittier conform to generally accepted accounting principles as 
applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant policies: 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e ., the statement of net posit ion and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the activities of the City. In general, the effect of interfund 
activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the double-counting of internal 
activities. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues , are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely primarily on fees and 
charges to external parties. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment is offset by program revenues . Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) fees , fines and charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation 

The government-wide and proprietary fund-type financial statements are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the 
related cash flows . Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. 
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by 
the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 
days after year end . Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under 
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences are recorded only to the extent they have matured . 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Property taxes, sales taxes, charges for services, and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the 
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only 
when received by the government. 

The City reports the following major funds: 

Governmental funds : 

The General Fund is the City 's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The Cruise Ship Tax Special Revenue Fund accounts for the receipt and use of the Commercial 
Passenger Vessel Tax. 

The Shotgun Cove Capital Project Fund accounts for grants received for the construction of 
Shotgun Cove road . 

Proprietary funds: 

The Small Boat Harbor Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the boat harbor. 

The Water and Sewer En terprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the City water and 
sewer systems. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as 
program revenues. In addition, general revenues include all taxes, investment income and State 
entitlement revenues . 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for the 
proprietary funds include the costs of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on 
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 

Budgetary Accounting 

An operating budget is adopted each fisca l year for the General Fund on the same modified accrual 
basis used to reflect actual revenues and expenditures. Budgetary control is exercised at the 
department level. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budget amounts between line items 
within any department; however, any supplemental appropriations that amend the total 
expenditu res of any department or fund require Council approval. Reported budgeted amounts are 
as originally adopted or as amended. Appropriations for capital improvement projects and grants 
carry over at year end; al l others lapse at year end . The City does not legally adopt budgets for its 
various Special Revenue Funds, therefore the Required Supplementary Budgetary comparison 
schedules have been omitt ed from these financial statements. 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows , the Enterprise Funds consider all cash and equity in 
central treasury to be cash and cash equivalents . The central treasury, which holds cash and 
investments, is used essentially as a cash management pool by each fund. 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes are assessed on real and personal property and attach as a lien on April 1 of each 
year. Taxes are levied on August 1 of each year and are due on October 31. The City bills and 
collects its own property taxes. City property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the 
extent that they result in current receivables. 

Central Treasury 

A central treasury is used to account for cash from most funds of the City to maximize interest 
income. 

Prepaid Items 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded 
as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Cost is recorded as an 
expenditure or expense as the prepayment is applied (consumption method ). 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets , which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type columns in the government-wide financial statements . Capital assets 
are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5 ,000 and an estimated 
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical 
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value 
at the date of donation. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as 
projects are constructed. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend the useful life of the asset are not capitalized. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement 
focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with 
their activity are included on the statements of net position . Proprietary fund-type operating 
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position . 

Property, plant, and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings and improvements 
Roads and infrastructure 
Equipment 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues 

In applying the measurable and available concepts to grants and intergovernmental revenues, the 
legal and contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. 
There are, however, essentially two types of these revenues. In one, monies must be expended on 
the specific purpose or project before any amounts are considered "earned"; therefore, revenues 
are recognized based upon expenditures recorded. In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as 
to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed 
compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues .at the time of receipt or 
earlier if the measurable and available criteria are met. 

lnterfund Transactions 

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds, 
including expenditures and t ransfers of resources to provide services and construct assets. The 
accompanying financial statements generally reflect such transactions as transfers . Operating 
subsidies are also recorded as transfers. The classification of amounts recorded as subsidies, 
advances, or transfers is determined by the City Council. 

Accrued Vacation 

The City allows employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits . All vacation pay is 
accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund-type financial statements. A 
liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental fund financial statements only if they have 
matured (e.g. the employee has terminated employment) . 

Long-Term Debt 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long­
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. In the fund financial statements, 
governmental fund types recognize principal and interest payments made during the current period. 
The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources. 

Fund Balances 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts for five 
classifications of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these resources . 
The nonspendable fund ba lance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they 
are either (a) not in spendable form- prepaid items or inventories; or (b) legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. 

The spendable portion of the fund balances comprises the remaining four classifications: 
restricted , committed , assigned , and unassigned. 

Restricted fund balance. This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either 
(a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors , or laws or regulations of other governments; or 
(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Committed fund balance. These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal ordinances of the City Council- the government ' s highest level of 
decision making authority . Those committed amounts cannot be used for any ot her purpose unless 
the City Council removes the specified use by taking the same t ype of action imposing the 
commitment. 

Assigned fund balance . This classification reflects the amount s constrained by the City 's "intent" 
to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed . The City Council may 
assign amounts to be used for specific purposes . Assigned fund balances include all remaining 
amounts (except negative balances) that are reported in governmental funds, other than the 
General Fund , that are not classified as nonspendable and are neither restricted nor committed . 

Unassigned fund balance - This fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund . It 
is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City 's policy to use 
externally restricted resources first , then unrestricted resources- committed , assigned , and 
unassigned- in order as needed. 

Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for 
expenditures are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund . 

Unearned Grant Revenue 

Amounts received from grantor agencies, which are restricted as to use and have not been expended 
for the intended uses are shown as unearned revenue . 

Pension Plan 

Substantially all employees of the City participate in the Public Employees' Retirement System 
(PERS) administered by the State of Alaska. 

Comparative Data 

Comparative data for the prior year have been presented in some of the accompanying financial 
statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City's financial position and 
operations. 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

2. Cash and Investments 

The City of Whittier utilizes a central treasury that is available for use by all funds. Each fund's 
portion of the central treasury is displayed on the balance sheet or statement of net position as "cash 
and investments" or in the case of "negative cash," is included in "due to other funds. " The central 
treasury is used to optimize investment revenue . There are no statutory limitations on the type of 
investment allowed . 

Reconcilia t ion of Deposit and Investment Balances 

The following is a reconciliation of the City 's deposit and investment balances to the financial 
statements as of December 31 , 2014. 

Petty cash 
Bank deposits 
AMLIP pooled investments 

Total Cash and Investments 

Investment Policy 

$ 

$ 

Pooled Cash 
and 

Investments 

602 
7,460,701 
2,141 ,570 

9,602,873 

The City has not established a formal investment policy. 

Interest Rate Risk 
Investment maturities in general investments at December 31 , 2014 are as follows : 

Investment Maturities (In Years ) 
Investment Type Fair Value Less Than 1 1-5 5-10 

AMLIP pooled investments $ 2,141 ,570 $ 2,141 ,570 $ $ 

Credit Risk 
Pooled investments are invested with the Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool , Inc. (AMLIP). The 
AMLIP is an external investment pool which is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor 's for credit risk 
purposes. Alaska Statute 37.23 establishes regulatory oversight of the Pool. The law sets forth 
numerous requirements regarding authorized investments and reporting. The share value of 
investments in the AMLIP is approximately equal to fair value. 

Custodia/ Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that the City 's deposits may not be returned to it, or, in the case 
of investments, the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counter-party, the government 
may not be able to recover the value of its investments. The City's commercial bank account is 
insured by the FDIC for $250,000. All other cash and investment balances are uninsured and 
uncollateralized . 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

3. Accounts Receivable and Valuation Allowances 

The City maintains accounts receivable balances of which a portion is reserved as an allowance for 
doubtful receivables. At December 31 , 2014, the City's receivables were as fo llows: 

Shotgun Small Boat Water and 
Cove Harbor Sewer Non-major 

General Capital Project Enterprise Enterprise Funds Totals 

Escrows $ 13,823 $ $ $ $ $ 13,823 
Grants and shared 

revenues 814,210 197,375 47,671 1,059 ,256 
Accounts 10,241 172,632 15, 188 198,061 
Sales taxes 3,288 3,288 
Real and personal 

property taxes 55,629 55 ,629 

Total receivables 82, 981 814,210 370,007 15, 188 47,671 1,330,057 
Allowance for 

doubtful accounts (37,000) (37,000) 

Net Receivables $ 82,981 $ 814,210 $ 333,007 $ 15, 188 $ 47,671 $ 1,293 ,057 

4. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31 , 2014 was as follows : 

Balance 
Balance December 31 , 

Governmental Activities January 1, 2014 Additions Deletions 2014 

Capital assets not being 
depreciated: 
Land and land 
improvements $ 100,000 $ $ $ 100,000 

Construction in progress 1,230, 597 2,742,768 . 3, 100,942 872,423 

Total assets not being 
depreciated 1,330, 597 2,742,768 3, 100,942 972,423 

Capital assets being 
depreciated: 
Buildings and facilities 500 ,053 500 ,053 
Roads and infrastructure 9,638 ,394 2, 509 ,993 12,148,387 
Equipment 2,153 ,352 11 ,479 2, 164,831 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 12,291,799 2, 521 ,472 14,813 ,271 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Governmental Activities, Balance Balance 
continued January 1, 2014 Additions Deletions December 31 , 2014 

Less accumulated 
depreciation for : 
Buildings and facilities $ 261 ,161 $ 6,667 $ $ 267,828 
Roads and infrastructure 192, 768 242 ,968 435,736 
Equipment 1,303,402 97 ,956 1,401 ,358 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 1,757,331 347, 591 2, 104,922 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated , net 10, 534,468 2, 173,881 12,708 ,349 

Governmental Activity 
Capital Assets, net $ 11 ,865 ,065 $ 4 ,916,649 $ 3, 100,942 $ 13 ,680,772 

Balance Balance 
Business-type Activities January 1, 2014 Additions Deletions December 31 , 2014 

Capital assets not being 
depreciated: 

Construction in progress $ 301 ,581 $ 394,750 $ $ 696,331 

Capital assets being 
depreciated: 
Buildings and harbor 
facilities 17,988,863 336,346 18,325 ,209 

Water and sewer system 12,666, 103 12,666, 103 
Equipment 390, 779 390,779 

Total capita l assets being 
depreciated 31 ,045 ,745 336,346 31 ,382,091 

Less accumulated 
depreciation for : 
Buildings and harbor 
facil it ies 5,507,012 741 , 589 6,248 ,601 

Water and sewer system 4, 114,629 316,653 4,431 ,282 
Equipment 376,335 4,308 380,643 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 9,997,976 1,062 ,550 11 ,060, 526 

Total capita l assets being 
depreciated , net 21 ,047,769 (726 ,204) 20 ,321 ,565 

Business-type Activity 
Capital Assets, net $ 21 ,349 ,350 $ (331 ,454) $ $ 21 ,017,896 
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Depreciation expense was charged to the functions as follows : 

Governmental Activities 

General government 
Public safety 
Facilities and escrows 
Public works 

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities 

Small boat harbor 
Water and sewer 

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type Activities 

5. lnterfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 

$ 

$ 

1,907 
40,782 

1,028 
303 ,874 

347, 591 

740,876 
321 ,674 

$ 1,062,550 

A schedule of interfund balances and transfers as of and for the year ended December 31 , 2014 
follows : 

Due From Other Funds: 
Due to the General Fund from: 
Shotgun Cove Capital Project Fund for short term capital advance 
Nonmajor governmental funds for short term capital advances 

Total Due To/From Other Funds 

Transfers 
From the Cruise Ship Tax Special Revenue Fund to: 

General Fund to cover Public Safety operating costs 
Small Boat Harbor Enterprise Fund for Harbor Improvements 

Total Transfers 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

733 ,626 
39,643 

773 ,269 

158,000 
2,064,690 

2,222,690 
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6. Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31 , 2014 follows: 

Balance Balance Due 
January 1, December 31 , Within 

Governmental Activities 2014 Additions Retired 2014 One Year 

Litigation set tlement 
(note 14) $ 150,000 $ $ (23 ,766) $ 126,234 $ 23 ,500 

Accrued leave 34,318 26,310 (34,318) 26 ,310 26 ,310 

Total Governmental 
Activities $ 184,318 $ 26,310 $ (58 ,084) $ 152, 544 $ 49,810 

Balance Balance Due 
January 1, December 31 , Within 

Business-type Activities 2014 Additions Retired 2014 One Year 

Accrued leave $ 36,392 $ 17,644 $ (36 ,395) $ 17,641 $ 17,641 

With the exception of accrued leave in the enterprise funds , all other long-term liabilities are 
expected to be liquidated by the General Fund . 

7. Fund Balances 

Fund balances, reported for the major funds and the nonmajor funds in the aggregate on the 
governmental funds balance sheet are subject to the following constraints : 

Cruise Ship 
Tax Special Nonmajor 

General Revenue Funds Totals 

Nonspendable - prepaid 
items $ 57,246 $ $ $ 57,246 

Restricted - cruise ship 
projects 2,334,974 2,334,974 

Committed - capital projects 380,300 380,300 
Unassigned 2,699 ,541 2,699 ,541 

Total Fund Balances $ 2, 756, 787 $ 2,334,974 $ 380,300 $ 5,472 ,061 
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8. Expenditures in Excess of Appropriation 

Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following General Fund departments by the following 
amounts. 

Police 
Fire 
Emergency medical services 
Clinic 

9. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

s 20 ,952 
3,564 

13 ,689 
1,990 

The City participates in the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS). PERS is a cost-sharing 
multiple employer plan which covers eligible State and local government employees, other than 
teachers . The Plan was established and is administered by the State of Alaska Department of 
Administration to provide pension, postemployment healthcare, death , and disability benefits. 
Benefit and contribution provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the 
State Legislature. 

The Plan is included in a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements 
and other required supplemental information. The report is available at the following address: 

Department of Administration 
Division of Retirement and Benefits 
P.O. Box 110203 
Juneau , Alaska 99811-0203 

Conversion to Cost Sharing 

In April 2008, the Alaska Legislature passed legislation which converted the existing Public 
Employees Retirement System (PERS) from an agent-multiple employer plan to a cost-sharing plan 
with an effective date of July 1, 2008. Under the cost-sharing arrangement, the State of Alaska 
Division of Retirement and Benefits no longer tracks individual employer assets and liabilities. 
Rather , all plan costs and past service liabilities are shared among all participating employers. 

That same year, the State of Alaska passed additional legislat ion which statutorily capped the 
employer contribution , established a state funded "on-behalf" contribution , and required that 
employer contributions be calculated against all PERS eligible wages , including wages attributable 
to the defined contribution plan described later in these footnotes . 

Employee Contribution Rates 

Regular employees are required to contribute 6. 75% of their annual covered salary (3.26% for 
pension and 3.49% for healthcare) . Police and firefighters are required to contribute 7.5% of their 
annual covered salary (3.62% for pension and 3.88% for healthcare) . 
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Employer and Other Contribution Rates 

There are several contribution rates associated with the pension and healthcare contributions and 
related liabilities . These amounts are calculated on an annual basis. 

Employer Effective Rate: This is the required funding rate for participating employers. The 
contractual rate is statutorily capped at 22% of eligible wages , subject to a wage floor , and other 
termination events. This 22% rate includes all PERS participating wages , including those wages 
attributable to employees in the defined contribution plan. 

ARM Board Adopted Rate: This is the rate formally adopted by the Alaska Retirement 
Management Board . This rate is actuarially determined to calculate annual funding requirements 
of the Plan , without regard to the statutory rate cap. 

State Contribution Rate: This is the rate actually paid by the State as an on-behalf payment . 

GASB 43 Rate: This is the rate used to determine the long-term pension and healthcare liability 
for plan accounting purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as 
established by GASB. Certain actuarial methods and assumptions for this rate calculation are 
mandated by GASB. For State fiscal year FY15 (six months ended December 2014) , the rate uses 
an 8.00% pension discount rate and a 4.90% healthcare discount rate . Additionally, the GASB 43 
rate disregards all future Medicare Part D payments . 

From 2008 through June 30, 2014, legislation provided that the State of Alaska contribute the 
difference between the ARM Board adopted rate and the employer effective (statutory) rate . 
These additional contributions are recognized by each employer as an on -behalf payment and are 
reflected as revenue and expense/expenditures within the financial statements. 

Effective beginning July 1, 2014, the State passed additional legislation appropriating a one-time 
funding contribution to the Plan in the amount of $1 billion. This $1 billion is allocated among all 
participating employers and will be recorded as an on-behalf payment. This amount significantly 
exceeds the required on-behalf payment established as the difference between the ARM Board 
rate and the employer effective rate. In addition , prior to July 1, 2015 , there are no constraints 
or restrictions on the actuarial cost method or other assumptions used in the ARM Board valuation. 
Effective July 1, 2015 , the Legislature requires the ARM Board to adopt employer contribution 
rates for past service liabilities using a level percent of pay method over a closed 25 year term 
which ends in 2039 , resulting in lower ARM Board rates. As a result of these changes , the State 
fiscal year 2015 on-behalf payment will be significantly higher than under previous calculations , 
and in State fiscal year 2016 , the on-behalf amounts will be lower than under previous 
calculations. 

The GASB 43 rate differs significantly from the ARM Board adopted rate as a direct result of 
differences in the actuarial valuation methodology and assumptions . 
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Contribution rates for the six months ended June 30, 2014 were determined as part of the June 
30, 2011 actuarial valuation. Rates for the six months ended December 31, 2014 (State FY15) 
were determined in the June 30, 2012 valuation . 

Employer ARM Board State 
Effective Adopted Contribution GASB 43 

January to June 2014 Rate Rate Rate Rate 

Pension 10.64% 18. 38% 7.74% 27.94% 
Postemployment healthcare 11.36% 17.30% 5.94% 52.55% 

Total Contribution Rate 22.00% 35.68% 13.68% 80.49% 

July to December 2014 

Pension 12.54% 25 .09% 42.41 % 33.05% 
Postemployment healthcare 9.46% 18.94% - % 55 .07% 

Total Contribution Rate 22.00% 44.03% 42.41 % 88.12% 

Annual Pension and Postemployment Healthcare Cost 

The City is required to contribute 22% of covered payroll , subject to a wage floor. In addition, the 
State of Alaska has also made additional contributions to the Plan as noted above. In accordance 
with the provisions of GASB Statement Number 24, these additional contributions are considered 
on -behalf payments and are recorded as revenue and expense/expenditures in these financial 
statements. However, because the City is not statutorily obligated for these payments, the 
State's contributions , in the amounts of $283,990, $160,212, and $119 ,980 for 2014, 2013 , and 
2012, respectively, have been excluded from pension and OPEB cost as shown below: 

Total 
Year Ended Annual Annual OPEB Benefit Cost City % of TBC 
December 31 , Pension Cost Cost (TBC) Contributions Contributed 

2014 s 94, 197 s 81 ,696 s 175,893 s 175,893 100% 
2013 105,686 99,489 205 ,175 205 , 175 100% 
2012 74, 184 94,607 168,791 168, 171 100% 

10. Defined Contribution Pension Plan 

Employees hired after July 1, 2006 participate in PERS Tier IV, a defined contribution plan . The Plan 
is administered by the State of Alaska , Department of Administration. Benefit and contribution 
provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the State Legislature. The 
Alaska Retirement Management Board may also amend contribution requirements. Included in the 
Plan are individual pension accounts, retiree medical insurance plan and a separate Health 
Reimbursement Arrangement account that will help retired members pay medical premiums and 
other eligible medical expenses not covered by the medical plan. 
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Employee Contribution Rates 

Employees are required to contribute 8.0% of their annual covered salary. This amount goes directly 
to the individual's account. 

Employer Contribution Rates 

The City is required to contribute the following amounts based on covered salary: 

January to June 2014 

Individual account 
Retiree medical plan 
Occupational death and disability benefits 

Total Contribution Rate 

July to December 2014 

Individual account 
Retiree medical plan 
Occupational death and disability benefits 

Total Contribution Rate 

Other Tier IV 

5.00% 
0.48% 
0.20% 

5.68% 

5.00% 
1.66% 
0.22% 

6.88% 

Police/Fire 
Tier IV 

5.00% 
0.48% 
1.14% 

6.62% 

5.00% 
1.66% 
1.06% 

7.72% 

In addition, the employer must contribute to the Health Reimbursement Arrangement. AS 39.30.370 
establishes this contribution amount as "three percent of the average annual employee compensation 
of all employees of all employers in the plan". As of July 1, 2014, for actual remittance, this 
amount is calculated as a flat rate for each full time or part-time employee per pay period and 
approximates $1 , 961 per year for each full -time employee, and $1.26 per hour for part-time 
employees. 

The total employer contribution must equal 22% of covered payroll. After subtracting the defined 
contribution (DC) rates and the HRA contribution, any residual amount of the 22% will be deposited 
into the defined benefit (DB) plan. Known as the Defined Benefit Unfunded Liability (DBUL) payment, 
this amount is intended to mitigate reduced contributions in the DB plan due to the declining payroll 
base that resulted from the creation of the DC plan. 

Employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and vest 25% per year in employer 
contributions. The City and employee contributions to PERS including the HRA contribution for the 
year ended December 31 , 2014 were $47,096 and $36,747, respectively. 

11. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all employees, permits them to defer a portion of 
their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until 
termination , retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. The provisions of the Plan require that 
all assets and income of the Plan be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their 
beneficiaries. 
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12. Risk Management 

The City faces a considerable number of risks of loss, including (a) damage to and loss of property 
and contents, (b) employee torts , (c) professional liability; i.e. , errors and omissions, (d) 
environmental damage, (e) workers' compensation; i.e. , employee injuries, and (f) medical insurance 
costs of employees. Commercial policies, transferring the risk of loss, except for relatively small 
deductible amounts, are purchased for employee medical costs. The City participates in the Alaska 
Municipal League Joint Insurance Association (AML/ JIA) which provides insurance coverage for 
property and contents damage, torts, general and automobile liability, and workers' compensation . 
The City has no coverage for potential losses from environmental damages. The JIA is a public entity 
risk pool organized to share risks among its members. The Association 's bylaws provide for the 
assessment of supplemental contributions from members in the event that losses and expenses for 
any coverage year exceed the annual contributions and income earned on such contributions for the 
year. Such supplemental contributions shall be based upon each member's annual deposit 
contribution in comparison to the aggregate annual deposit contributions of all members. The 
Association made no supplemental assessments during the year ended December 31 , 2014. Coverage 
limits and the deductibles on the policies have stayed relatively constant for the past few years. 

13. Lease Commitment 

The City has entered into a lease agreement with the Alaska Railroad Corporation effective 
November 13, 1998. The lease covers certain real property in the core area of Whittier. The lease 
requires the City to pay the Railroad $ 1 per year, plus 20% of any sublease revenue received by the 
City for the first five years and 40% of any sublease revenue received after that. The lease expires 
on November 12, 2033 but is renewable for two additional 35-year terms. 

14. Other Commitments and Contingencies 

Grants 
The City participates in a number of State and federally assisted programs. These programs are 
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The amount, if any, 
of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time 
although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

Litigation Settlement 
In 2014, City entered into a settlement agreement connected with a property related litigation. 
Terms of the settlement, among other administrative issues, require the City to pay $100,000 
immediately upon the settlement. Additionally, the City will grant a lease / rent credit equal to 50% 
of the sales tax collections of the Whittier Inn, up to the annual lease value of $23 ,424. Total lease 
credit to be awarded over a number of years will be $150,000. In addition, the settlement requires 
an additional $150,000 lease credit to the Whittier Inn, to be amortized over several years , in an 
amount equal to 50% of the actual repair costs incurred by the Whittier Inn. Finally, the settlement 
agreement requires the City to grant an additional $250,000 lease credit , contingent upon the 
Whittier Inn expanding its facility by an additional 20 rooms. 

The City recorded the initial cash settlement in 2013. At that time the City also accrued the sales 
settlement liability as a litigation payable in the government-wide financial statements in the amount 
of $150,000. During 2014, the property owner remitted $47,532 in sales tax, generating a lease 
credit of 50% of that amount, or $23,766. In the General Fund, the lease credit is recorded as a 
reduction of lease revenue. In the government-wide financial statements, the lease revenue has 
been reinstated; however, the accrued liability has been reduced . 
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There we re no other credits or transactions reflected related to the remaining settlement terms as 
the property owner did not proceed with any of the contingency items. 

15. Subsequent Events 

In February 2015 , the City signed a rent and settlement agreement with a local lessee to settle 
ongoing lease disputes and ot her related claims. Terms of the settlement require that the lessee pay 
t he City the sum of $54,000 in two installments in 2015 to settle all prior lease related claims. The 
agreement includes several new renegotiated lease agreements. These agreements include new 
lease payment terms including established escalation and future CPI adjustments . 

In addition , one of the new lease agreements further specifies that as of June 15, 2015 the City will 
establish a lease credit to t he lessee related to Creek Stabilization costs. The value of the credit is 
established at $221 ,200 effective June 30, 2015 and eligible costs and activities can be used to offset 
the amounts due on the Parking lease only. In addition , the lessee shall pay for the cost of platting 
the properties under the leases and these costs shall also reduce the credit against rent items up to 
$8,000 on the other leases. These lease credits will be recorded as a long-term liability and related 
expense in the government-wide financial statements in 2015 . 

Neither t ransaction has been recorded in the 2014 financial statements. 

16. New Accounting Pronouncements 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has passed several new accounting standards with 
upcoming implementation dates . Management has not fully evaluated the potential effects of 
these statements , but believes that GASB Statement 68 will result in the biggest reporting change . 
Actual impacts have not yet been determined : 

GASB 68 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - Effective for year-end December 31 , 
2015 - This statement changes the reporting and disclosure requirements for governments that 
participate in pension plans. This statement modifies the participating employer side reporting in 
connection with the Plan reporting at GASB 67. 

GASB 71 - Pension Transi t ion for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date -
Effective for year-end December 31 , 2015 - This statement is a companion to GASB Statement 68 
and clarifi es treatment of contributions made by a contributing entity to a defined benefit pension 
plan after the measurement date of the government ' s beginning net pension liability. 

GASB 72 - Fair Value Disclosures - Effective for year-end December 31 , 2016 - This statement 
defines fai r value and describes how fair value should be measured , what assets and liabilities 
should be measured at fair value, and what information about fair value should be disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements . 

GASB 73 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within 
the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 
and 68 - Effective for year-end December 31 , 2016 - establishes requirements for those pensions 
and pension plans that are not administered through a trust meeting specified criteria (in other 
words, those not covered by Statements 67 and 68. 
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GASB 74 - Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans -
Effective for year-end December 31 , 2017 - This statement addresses the financial reports of 
defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet specified criteria . 

GASB 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefi ts Other Than Pensions -
Effective for year-end December 31 , 2017 - This statement contains changes to the accounting and 
reporting standards by employer participants in government sponsored other postemployment 
benefit plans. 

GASB 76 - The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local 
Governments - Effective for year-end December 31 , 2016 - This statement reduces the GAAP 
hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP from the four categories under GASB Statement 
No. 55. 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Original Final 

Year Ended December 31 , 2014 Budget Budget Actual 

Revenues 

Taxes $ 1,424,600 $ 1,428 ,800 $ 1,482, 165 

Federal government 50,000 84,978 

State of Alaska 366,400 341 ,400 458,825 
Investment income and penalties 5,200 5,200 12,081 

Rental and lease revenue 160, 184 136, 184 153,664 

Other 133,500 153,500 80,907 

Total Revenues 2, 139,884 2,065,084 2,272,620 

Expenditures 

General government 943 ,756 976,406 850,772 

Public safety 774,595 774,775 814,970 

Facili ties and escrows 19,21 6 19,216 

Public works 390,273 390,573 288,665 

Total Expendi tures 2,127,840 2, 160, 970 1, 954,407 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expendi tures 12,044 (95,886) 318,213 

Other Financing Sources 

Transfers in 158,000 158,000 158,000 

Net Change in Fund Balance $ 170,044 $ 62, 114 476 ,213 

Fund Balance, beginning 2,280, 574 

Fund Balance, ending $ 2,756 ,787 
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Final 

Budget 

Variance 

$ 53 ,365 

84,978 

117,425 

6,881 

17,480 

(72,593) 

207,536 

125,634 

(40, 195) 

19,216 

101 ,908 

206,563 

414,099 

$ 414,099 
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December 31 , 2014 

Assets 

Cash and investments $ 
Grants receivable 

Total Asset s $ 

Liabilities a nd Fund Balances 

Liabilitie s 

Accounts payable $ 
Unearned revenue 

Due to other funds 

Tot al Liabil ities 

Fund Balance s 

Committed for capital projects 

Tot al Liabil ities and Fund Balances $ 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Nonmaj or Governmental Funds 

Combini ng Balance Sheet 

Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds 

Environ -

mental Emergency 

Habitat Management General Railroad 

Restoration Services Reserve Improvement 

$ 5,850 $ 386, 907 $ $ 
12,020 3,033 

12,020 $ 5,850 $ 386, 907 $ 3,033 $ 

$ $ 6,607 $ 3,033 $ 
5,850 

12,020 

12,020 5,850 6,607 3,033 

380,300 

12,020 $ 5,850 $ 386,907 $ 3,033 $ 
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Tota l 

Public Nonmajor 

Works Governmental 

Safety Funds 

$ 392 ,757 

32,618 47,671 

32 ,618 $ 440,428 

4,995 $ 14,635 

5,850 

27,623 39 ,643 

32 ,618 60, 128 

380,300 

32,618 $ 440,428 



Exhibit E-2 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds 

Environ-
Public Total 

mental Emergency 
Works/ Nonmajor 

Habitat Management General Rail road Safety Governmental 

Year Ended December 31 , 2014 Restoration Services Reserve Improvement Complex Funds 

Revenues 
Federal government $ 23 ,587 $ $ $ $ $ 23,587 

State of Alaska 27,730 2,700 30,612 32,618 93,660 

18 
18 

Investment income 

Total Revenues 51 ,317 2,700 18 30,612 32,618 117,265 

Expenditures 

Capital outlay 51 ,317 2,700 33 ,825 30,612 32,618 151 ,072 

Net Change in Fund Balances 
(33,807) 

(33 ,807) 

Fund Balances, beginning 
414, 107 

414,107 

Fund Balances, ending $ $ $ 380,300 $ $ $ 380,300 
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December 31 , 

Assets 

Cash and Invest ments 

Receivables 

Escrows 

Accounts 

Leases 

Sa les taxes 

Real and personal property taxes 

Total Receivables 

Prepaid i tems 

Due from other funds 

Total Assets 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

General Fund 

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities, Defer red Inflows, and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Accrued payroll and benefits 

Unearned revenue 

Total Liabil i ties 

Defer red Inflow s 

Escrows 

Property taxes 

Tot al Deferred Inflows 

Fund Balance 

Nonspendable - prepaid items 

Unassigned 

Tot al Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balance 

38 

2014 

$ 2,001 ,086 $ 

13 ,823 

10,241 

3,288 
55,629 

82,981 

57,246 
773,269 

$ 2,914,582 $ 

$ 50,472 $ 
24,848 

13,023 

88,343 

13,823 
55,629 

69 ,452 

57,246 
2, 699,541 

2,756,787 

$ 2,914,582 $ 

_. ....... ~---------------------~~~ 
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2013 

1,827,529 

14,216 

5, 113 

1,351 

366 
62 ,055 

83, 101 

54,850 
525,033 

2,490, 513 

104, 135 

38,872 
2,808 

145,815 

14,216 
49,908 

64, 124 

54,850 
2,225,724 

2,280,574 

2,490,51 3 



Exhibit F-2 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

2014 2013 

Budget 

Year Ended December 31 , Budget Actual Variance Actual 

Reven ues 

Taxes : 
Real property taxes s 350,000 s 353,636 s 3,636 s 373,076 

Personal property taxes 291 ,600 262, 172 (29,428) 230,287 

Business transportation taxes 280,000 270,666 (9,334) 283,889 

Sales taxes 507,200 595,691 88,491 610, 166 

Total taxes 1,428,800 1,482, 165 53,365 1,497,418 

Federal government: 

National forest receipts 42 ,976 42 ,976 50,675 

Payment in lieu of taxes 42 ,002 42 ,002 38, 542 

Purchase bulk fue l 2, 500 

Total federal government 84,978 84,978 91,71 7 

State of Alaska : 
PERS relief 60,000 171,206 111 ,206 85,277 

Motor vehicle tax 4,000 4, 542 542 4,831 
Liq uor tax 5, 300 5,600 300 5,250 
Shared fisheries business tax and raw fish tax 150,000 166,492 16,492 154, 778 
Community revenue sharing 120,000 107,212 (12,788) 106,915 

Electric and telephone cooperative 2, 100 3,773 1,673 3,233 

Total State of Alaska 341 ,400 458,825 117,425 360,284 

Investment income, penalties, and interest 5,200 12,081 6,881 26,327 

Rental and lease revenue: 

City land 130,000 153,664 23 ,664 189, 582 

Condominiums 6, 184 (6, 184) 7,998 

Total rental and lease revenue 136, 184 153,664 17,480 197, 580 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, continued 

Year Ended December 31 , 

Revenues, continued 

Other revenues : 

Business licenses 

User fees and permits 

Fines and citations 

Donations 

Ambulance fees 

Tunnel contract 

Miscellaneous 

Total other revenues 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

General government: 

City Council: 

Land and improvements 

Community support 

Utilities 

Dues and subscriptions 

Public relations 

Lobbying fees 
Travel and per diem 

Supplies and materials 

Total City Council 

Commissions: 

Travel and training 

Miscellaneous 

Total commissions 

Administration and finance: 

Salaries 

Employee benefits 

Advertising 

Condo fees 

Bank service charges 

Community support 

Dues and subscriptions 

Insurance 

s 

40 

2014 

Budget Actual 

3,000 s 7, 122 s 
6,000 140 

3,000 6,449 
1,500 2, 845 

60,000 4,779 

60,000 46,580 

20,000 12,992 

153, 500 80,907 

2,065,084 2,272, 620 

40,000 7,148 

3,000 
400 54 

150 50 
10,250 12,584 

54,000 55,875 

10,000 13,081 
100 72 

117,900 88,864 

250 121 

250 

500 121 

267, 172 233 ,073 

138,650 156,297 
2, 100 2,772 

6,250 19, 157 

3,500 7,594 
145 645 

1,800 3,016 

52, 749 48,569 

Exhibit F-2 , continued 

Budget 

Variance 

4, 122 
(5,860) 

3,449 
1,345 

(55,221) 

(13,420) 

(7,008) 

(72,593) 

207, 536 

32,852 

3,000 
346 

100 
(2,334) 

(1, 875) 
(3,081) 

28 

29,036 

129 

250 

379 

34,099 
(17,647) 

(672) 

(12,907) 
(4,094) 

(500) 
(1,216) 

4, 180 

s 

2013 

Actual 

3,650 
2, 345 

1,280 

60,567 

67,842 

2,241 , 168 

10,000 

799 
54, 125 
12, 173 

221 

77, 318 

25 

25 

231 ,061 

125,980 

865 

5,056 
8,236 

500 
2,448 

50, 565 

_....... ......... ---------------~~ 



City of Whittier, Alaska 

General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua l, continued 

Year Ended December 31 , 

Expenditu res, continued 

General government, continued: 

Administration and finance, continued: 

Physical exams 

Postage 
Legal fees 

Audit fees 
Accounting fees 

Other professional services 

Licenses and permits 

Travel and per diem 

Equipment repairs and maintenance 

Supplies and materials 

Utili ties 

Telephone 

Outside contractors 

Miscellaneous 

Land and Improvements 

Equipment 

Capi tal outlay 

Total administration and finance 

Less amount allocated to other 

departments and funds 

Net administ ration and finance 

Elections : 

Salaries 

Advertising 

Total elections 

Total general government 

Public safety: 

Police: 

Salaries 

Employee benefits 

Dues and subscriptions 

Condo fees 

s 

41 

Budget 

250 

6,000 

155,464 
30,000 

112,000 

119,700 
150 

20,000 

10, 100 

9,500 
8,000 

6, 100 
15,800 
1,650 

45,000 

1,012,080 

(155,474) 

856,606 

800 
600 

1,400 

976,406 

225, 378 

104,301 

600 
3,468 

$ 

2014 

Actual 

3,064 

91 ,419 
34, 995 

119,703 

63 ,825 

24,353 

18,820 

9, 563 
10, 101 

7,990 

12,944 
601 

47,632 

916, 133 

(155,474) 

760,659 

678 
450 

1, 128 

850,772 

207,629 

138,646 

2,428 

s 
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Budget 

Variance 

250 

2,936 

64,045 
(4,995) 

(7,703) 

55 ,875 

150 
(4, 353) 

(8,720) 

(63) 
(2, 101) 

(1 ,890) 
2,856 

1,049 

(2,632) 

95,947 

95,947 

122 

150 

272 

125,634 

17, 749 

(34,345) 

600 
1,040 

$ 

2013 

Actual 

250 

4,334 

212,787 
32,926 

107,459 

112,443 

30 

18,683 

7,749 

10,260 
9,210 

8,641 
8,016 

54, 953 

1,741 

1,014, 193 

(217,916) 

796,277 

1, 153 

911 

2,064 

875,684 

231, 103 

117,420 

42 

2,902 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Ba lance - Budget and Actual, continued 

Year Ended December 31 , 

Expenditures, continued 
Public safety, continued : 

Police, continued : 
Insurance 

Physical exams 

Licenses and permits 
Travel and per diem 

Repairs and maintenance 
Supplies and materials 

Utilities 
Telephone 
Outside contractors 

Equipment 

Interest 

Total police 

Fire : 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Volunteer support 

Insurance 
Licenses 
Travel and per diem 

Repairs and maintenance 

Supplies and materials 
Utilities 
Telephone 
Outside contractors 

Equipment 

Total fire 

Emergency medical services : 

Salaries 

Employee benefits 

s 

42 

2014 

Budget Act ual 

20, 922 s 16, 548 s 
500 461 
50 

2,500 2, 269 
12, 150 13,275 
25 , 750 24,428 
15,000 10,246 
10,000 12,889 

700 812 

7,100 19,740 

428,419 449,371 

19,677 20,511 
11 ,446 16,736 

664 703 

1,780 1,780 

30 
2,000 1,801 
2,750 2, 128 

6,910 5,630 
3,700 4,505 
1,500 

500 250 
1,500 1,977 

52,457 56,021 

151 ,931 151 ,040 
65, 349 87,174 

Exhibit F-2, continued 

Budget 
Variance 

4, 374 

39 
50 

231 
(1, 125) 

1, 322 
4,754 

(2, 889) 
(112) 

(12,640) 

(20,952) 

(834) 
(5,290) 

(39) 

30 
199 
622 

1,280 
(805 ) 

1, 500 

250 
(477) 

(3, 564) 

891 
(21,825) 

s 

2013 

Actual 

15, 347 

45 
998 

12, 176 

22,352 
11 ,036 

14, 177 
149 

18,563 

145 

446,455 

18,501 
13,575 
1, 173 

1,780 

40 
485 

5, 180 

3,418 
4,318 
1,890 

149 
2,253 

52,762 

140,862 

72,773 



City of Whittier, Alaska 

General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, continued 

Year Ended December 31 , 

Expenditures, continued 

Public safety, continued: 

Emergency medical services, continued: 

Insurance 

Licenses and permits 

Travel and per diem 

Repairs and maintenance 

Supplies and materials 

Utilities and telephone 

Grant expenditures 

Outside con tractors 

Volunteer support · 

Equipment 

Total emergency medical services 

Clinic: 

Condo fees 

Repairs and maintenance 

Te lephone 

Other 

Total clinic 

Total public safety 

Facil ities and escrows: 

Condo fees 

Other professional services 

Repairs and maintenance 

Utilities 

Total facilities and escrows 

Public works: 

Salaries 

Employee benefits 

Insurance 

Physical exams 

Licenses and permits 

Travel and per diem 

s 

43 

Budget 

14, 510 

20 

17,000 
3,000 

13,825 

7,733 
2,000 

500 
842 

1,000 

277,710 

7, 179 

10 

9,000 

16, 189 

774,775 

11 , 116 

7,000 

1, 100 

19,216 

134,605 

59,518 
7,512 

500 

500 
2,500 

s 

2014 

Actual 

9, 512 

10 

15, 372 
1, 502 

13,513 

10,228 

1,648 

806 

594 

291, 399 

9, 144 

35 

9,000 

18, 179 

81 4,970 

111 ,296 

80,023 
2,767 

121 

77 
759 

s 
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Budget 

Variance 

4,998 

10 

1,628 
1,498 

312 

(2,495) 
352 

500 
36 

406 

(13,689) 

(1 ,965) 

(25) 

(1 ,990) 

(40, 195) 

11 , 116 

7,000 

1, 100 

19,216 

23, 309 

(20,505) 

4,745 

379 
423 

1,741 

s 

2013 

Actual 

9, 511 

20 

14,319 
4,412 

12,074 

8,841 

149 

145 

263 , 106 

12,850 

867 
1,260 

4, 500 

19,477 

781 ,800 

6,977 
77 

2,219 

1, 179 

10,452 

121 ,259 
69,434 

2, 512 

10 

265 
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Exhibit F-2, continued 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, continued 

2014 2013 

Budget 
Year Ended December 31 , Budget Actual Variance Actual 

Expen ditures, continued 
Public works, continued: 

Repairs and maintenance s 45 ,000 s 23,021 s 21 ,979 s 26, 161 
Supplies and materials 67,500 31 ,457 36,043 41 ,456 
Utilities 77,938 59,459 18,479 64,557 
Outside contractors 10,000 68 9,932 10, 142 
Equipment 20,000 14,617 5, 383 8, 517 

Total public works 425, 573 323,665 101,908 344,313 

Less amount allocated to other 

departments and funds (35,000) (35,000) (50,000) 

Net public works 390, 573 288,665 101 ,908 294,313 

Total Expenditures 2, 160,970 1,954,407 206,563 1,962,249 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (95 ,886) 318,213 414,099 278, 919 

Other Financing Sources 

Transfers in 158,000 158,000 158,000 

Net Change in Fund Balance s 62, 114 476,213 s 414,099 436,919 

Fund Balance, beginn ing 2,280, 574 1,843,655 

Fund Balance, ending s 2,756, 787 s 2,280,574 
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Year Ended December 31 , 

Revenues 

State of Alaska 

Expenditures 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Cruise Ship Tax Special Revenue Fund 

Stat ement of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balance 

General governmen t - administrative expense 

Capital out lay 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over Expendi tures 

Other Financing Uses 

Transfers out 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, beginning 

Fund Balance, ending 

45 

2014 

$ 950,635 

15,370 

336,346 

351,716 

598, 919 

(2,222,690) 

(1,623 ,771 ) 

3,958 ,745 

$ 2,334,974 

Exhibit G-1 

2013 

$ 828 ,865 

10,000 

398 

10,398 

818 ,467 

(158,000) 

660,467 

3,298,278 

$ 3, 958,745 

~~-------------------------~ 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Environmental Habitat Restoration Special Revenue Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 

Year Ended December 31 , 

Revenues 

Federal government 

State of Alaska 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

Capital outlay 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, beginning 

Fund Balance, ending 

and Changes in Fund Balance 

$ 

$ 

46 

2014 

23 ,587 

27,730 

51,317 

51 ,317 

Exhibit G-2 

2013 

$ 406,808 

406,808 

406 ,808 

$ 



City of Whittier, Alaska 

Emergency Management Services Special Revenue Fund 

Stat ement of Revenues, Expenditures 

Year Ended December 31 , 

Revenues 

State of Alaska 

Expenditures 

Capital outlay 

Total Expendi tures 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, beginning 

Fund Balance, ending 

and Changes in Fund Balance 
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2014 

s 2,700 

2,700 

2,700 

s 

~~------------------------~ 



Year Ended December 31 , 

Revenues 

Federal government 

State of Alaska 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

Capital outlay 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, beginning 

Fund Balance, ending 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Shotgun Cove Capital Project Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balance 

48 

2014 

$ 1,530,263 $ 
725,561 

2,255 ,824 

2,255 ,824 

$ $ 

_. ............. ----------------~~ 
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2013 

17,862 

17,862 

17,862 



Year Ended December 31 , 

Revenues 

Investment income 

Expenditures 

Capi t al outlay 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, beginning 

Fund Balance, ending 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

General Reserve Capital Project Fund 

Stat ement of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balance 
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2014 2013 

s 18 s 42 

33 ,825 

(33 ,807) 42 

414, 107 414,065 

s 380,300 s 414,107 

~~~------------------............... _ 



Year Ended December 31 , 

Revenues 

State of Alaska 

Expenditures 

Capital outlay 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Railroad Improvement Capital Project Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, beginning 

Fund Balance, ending 
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2014 2013 

s 30,612 s 13 ,571 

30,612 13, 571 

s s 



City of Whittier, Alaska 

Public Works/Safety Complex Capital Project Fund 

Stat ement of Revenues, Expenditures 

Year Ended December 31 , 

Revenues 

State of Alaska 

Expenditures 

Capital outlay 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, beginning 

Fund Balance, ending 

and Changes in Fund Balance 
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2014 

$ 32,618 

32,618 

$ 

~~------------------------~ 



Exhibit H-1 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Small Boat Harbor Enterprise Fund 

Statement of Net Position 

December 31 , 2014 2013 

Assets 

Cu rrent Assets 

Cash and investments $ 1,263 ,187 $ 936,081 

Accounts receivable : 

Grant receivables 197,375 

Customer receivables 172,632 200,489 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (37,000) (15 , 109) 

Prepaid expenses 20,665 20, 185 

Restricted cash and investments 1, 802,625 

Total Current Asse ts 3,419,484 1' 141 ,646 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Plant and improveme nts 17, 246,981 16,910,635 

Equi pment 249,525 249,525 

Construction in progress 696,331 301 , 581 

Total property, plant and equipment 18, 192,837 17,461, 741 

Less accumulated depreciation (5 ,423,892) (4,683 ,016) 

Net Property, Plant and Equipment 12, 768,945 12,778, 725 

Total Assets $ 16, 188,429 $ 13 ,920,371 

Liabili t ies and Ne t Position 

Curre nt Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 454,973 $ 28,548 

Accrued payroll and benefits 14,265 10,245 

Accrued leave 8,457 17,684 

Unearned revenue - moorage 84,222 36,963 

Total Current Liabili ti es 561, 917 93 ,440 

Net Posit ion 
Net investment in capital assets 12, 768, 945 12,778, 725 
Restricted - cuise ship projects 1,802,625 

Unrestricted 1,054, 942 1,048,206 

Total Net Position 15,626,512 13 ,826,931 

Tota l Liabilities and Net Position $ 16, 188,429 $ 13 ,920,371 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Small Boat Harbor Enterprise Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position 

Year Ended December 31, 

Operating Revenues 

Preferentia l moorage 

Transient moorage 

Boat lift fees 

Electrical fees 
Dry land storage 

Wharfage 

Vessel tow fees 

Waiting list fees 

User fees 

Launch fees 

Alaska Railroad lease income 

Other 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Salaries 

Employee benefits 

Administrative expense 

Postage 

Depreciation 

Insurance 

Waste disposal - hazardous material 

Lobbying fees 

Other professional services 

Travel and per diem 

Repairs and maintenance 

Supplies and materials 

Smalt toots and equipment 

Utilities 

Alaska Railroad lease expense 

Outside contractors 

Other 

Total Operating Expenses 
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2014 

s 349, 179 

409,690 

14,604 

44, 081 

6,542 

11,889 

375 

17,700 

6,492 

92, 510 

155,101 

39,501 

1,147,664 

367,709 

240,337 

130,187 

2,412 

740,876 

67,614 

1,81 4 

52,375 

4,735 

4,506 

108,147 

41 ,507 

16,975 

177,825 

68, 149 

7,530 

s 2,032,698 
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2013 

s 391 ,157 

399,700 

15,482 

43,448 

4,004 

10,307 

713 

18,700 

4,747 

104, 170 

107,473 

29,321 

1, 129,222 

355,255 

21 9,340 

202,957 

2,875 

724,273 

65 ,880 

346 
83,612 

1, 148 

1,904 

11,032 

29,31 6 

1,369 

162,057 

52,572 

5,722 

1,392 

s 1, 921,050 



Exhibit H-2, continued 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Small Boat Harbor Enterprise Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position, continued 

Year Ended December 31 , 

Loss from Operations 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Alyeska contract 

State PERS relief 

Investment loss 

Net Nonoperating Revenues 

Loss Before Capital Contributions and Transfers 

Capital contributions 

Transfers in 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, beginning 

Net Position, ending 
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2014 

$ (885 ,034) 

20,700 

65,987 

(483) 

86 ,204 

(798,830) 

533 ,721 

2,064,690 

1,799 ,581 

13,826 ,931 

$ 15,626 ,512 

2013 

$ (791 ,828 ) 

29 ,900 

44,379 

(2,414) 

71 ,865 

(719, 963) 

(719,963) 

14,546 ,894 

$ 13,826 ,931 



Exhibit H-3 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Small Boat Harbor Enterprise Fund 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31 , 2014 2013 

Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities 

Receipts from customers and users s 1,265,371 s 1,207,776 

Payments to suppliers (652 ,581) (793 ,635) 

Payments to employees (547,266) (528 ,685) 

Net cash flows from (for) operating activities 65 ,524 (114,544) 

Cash Flows for Capita l a nd Related Fina ncing Activities 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (301 ,581) 

Transfe rs in 2,064,690 

Net cash flows for capi tal and related financing activities 2,064,690 (301 ,581) 

Cash Flows from (for) Investing Activities 

Investment income (loss) (483) (2 ,414) 

Net cash flows from (for) investing activities (483) (2 ,414) 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Investments 2,129,731 (418 ,539) 

Cash a nd Invest ment s, beginning 936 ,081 1,354,620 

Cash and Investments , ending s 3,065,812 s 936,081 

Reconciliat ion of Loss from Opera t io ns to 

Net Cash From (For) Operating Activities 

Loss from operations s (885 ,034) s (79 1,828) 
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations 

to net cash flows from (for) operating activities: 
Depreciation 740,876 724,273 
Nonoperating revenues 20,700 29 ,900 
Noncash expense - PERS relief 65 ,987 44,379 
Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts 21 ,891 
(Inc rease) decrease in assets: 

Accounts receivable 27,857 21 ,375 
Prepaid expenses (480) (5 ,664) 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 

Accounts payable 31 ,675 (165,789) 
Accrued payroll and benefits 4,020 2, 121 
Accrued leave (9 ,227) (590) 
Unearned revenue - moorage 47,259 27,279 

Net Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities $ 65 ,524 s (114,544) 

Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Accounts paya ble fo r capita l acquisition $ 394,750 s 
Transfer of capital assets from other fund s 336,346 s 
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Exhibit H-4 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund 

Statement of Net Position 

December 31, 2014 2013 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and investments s 1,416 ,511 s 1,315,804 

Accounts receivable 15, 188 8,040 

Prepaid expenses 4,405 5,250 

Total Current Assets 1,436,104 1,329,094 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Plant and improvements 13,744, 331 13,744,331 

Equipment 141 ,254 141 ,254 

Total property, plant and equipment 13,885,585 13,885,585 

Less accumulated depreciation (5 ,636 ,634) (5 ,314,960) 

Net Property, Plant and Equipment 8,248,951 8,570,625 

Total Assets s 9,685,055 s 9,899 ,719 

Liabilities and Net Position 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable s 9,070 s 6,077 

Accrued payroll and benefits 5,805 6,003 

Accrued leave 9,088 16,532 

Total Current Liabilities 23 ,963 28,612 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 8,248 , 951 8,570,625 

Unrestricted 1,412,141 1,300,482 

Total Net Position 9,661 ,092 9,871 ,107 

Total Liabilities and Net Position s 9,685 ,055 s 9,899 ,719 
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Exhibit H-5 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position 

Year Ended December 31 , 2014 2013 

Operating Revenues 

Charges for services $ 476 ,831 $ 508 ,089 

Operating Expenses 

Salaries 138,743 191 , 798 

Employee benefits 119,579 110,992 

Administrative expense 42,935 40,417 

Depreciation 321,674 321 ,673 

Insurance 1, 162 1, 162 

Licenses and permits 150 602 

Travel and per diem 2,683 3,514 

Equipment 1,662 652 

System and equipment repairs 11 , 735 10,261 

Supplies and materials 8,857 6, 138 

Utilities 40,274 39 ,947 

Other 40,622 6,537 

Total Operating Expenses 730,076 733,693 

Loss from Operat ions (253 ,245) (225 ,604 ) 

Nonoperating Revenues 

State PERS relief 43, 137 27,863 

Other 93 88 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 43 ,230 27,951 

Change in Net Position (21 0,015 ) (1 97,653) 

Net Position, beginning 9,871 , 107 10,068 ,760 

Net Position, ending $ 9,661 ,092 $ 9,871 , 107 
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Exhibit H-6 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31 , 2014 2013 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Receipts from customers and users s 469,776 s 508,889 

Payments to suppliers (146,242) (107,586) 

Payments to employees (222,827) (274,718) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 100,707 126,585 

Cash and Investments, beginning 1,315,804 1,189,219 

Cash and Investments, ending s 1,416,511 s 1,315,804 

Reconciliation of Loss from Operations to 

Net Cash From Operating Activities 

Loss from operations s (253 ,245) s (225,604) 

Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations 

to net cash flows from operating activities : 

Depreciation 321 ,674 321 ,673 

Nonoperating revenues 93 88 

Noncash expense - PERS relief 43 , 137 27,863 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 

Accounts receivable (7, 148) 712 

Prepaid expenses 845 52 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 

Accounts payable 2,993 1,592 

Accrued payroll and benefits (198) 1,856 

Accrued leave (7,444) (1 ,647) 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities s 100,707 s 126,585 
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Exhi bit H-7 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Parking Enterprise Fund 

Statement of Net Position 

December 31 , 2014 2013 

Assets 

Current Assets 

Cash and investments $ 391 , 733 $ 361 ,383 

Prepaid expenses 1,527 670 

Total Assets $ 393,260 $ 362,053 

Liabilities and Net Position 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilit ies 

Accounts payable $ 78 $ 
Accrued payroll and benefits 737 673 

Accrued leave 96 2, 176 

Total Liabilit ies 911 2,849 

Net Position 

Unrestricted 392,349 359,204 

Total Liabilities and Net Posit ion $ 393,260 $ 362,053 

59 



Year Ended December 31 , 

Operating Revenues 

Parking fees 

Operating Expenses 

Salaries 

Employee benefits 

Administrative expense 

Supplies 

Utilities 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Parking Enterprise Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 

in Net Position 

2014 

s 121 ,351 

45,172 

15,951 

17,352 

8,676 
4,716 

Total Operating Expenses 91 ,867 

Income from Operations 

Nonoperating Revenues 

State PERS relief 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, beginning 

Net Position, ending 
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29 ,484 

3,661 

33 ,145 

359,204 

s 392,349 

Exhibit H-8 

2013 

$115 ,751 

36,608 

14,538 

24,542 

5,448 
4, 111 

85,247 

30,504 

2,693 

33 , 197 

326,007 

s 359,204 



Exhibit H-9 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Parking Enterprise Fund 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31 , 201 4 2013 

Cash Flows from Operating Activi t ies 

Receipts from customers and users $ 121 ,351 $ 115, 751 

Payments to suppliers (31 ,523 ) (34,572 ) 

Payments to employees (59 ,478) (46,677) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 30,350 34,502 

Cash and Investments, beginning 361 ,383 326 ,881 

Cash and Investments, ending $ 391 ,733 $ 361 ,383 

Reconciliation of Income from Operations to 

Net Cash From Operating Activities 

Income from operations $ 29,484 $ 30,504 

Adjustments to reconcile income from operations 

to net cash flows from operating activities: 

Noncash expense - PERS relief 3,661 2,693 

(Increase) decrease in assets - prepaid expenses (857) (26) 

Increase (decrease) in liabili ties: 

Accounts payable 78 (445) 

Accrued payroll and benef its 64 224 
Accrued leave (2 ,080) 1,552 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities $ 30,350 $ 34,502 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended December 31 , 2014 

Catalog of 

Federal 

Domestic 

Grant Assistance 

Federal Grant Title Number Number 

De partment of Transportation 

Shotgun Cove Road Phase II DTFH70-03-A-17-0077 20.205 

Depa rtment of Agriculture 

Shakespeare Creek Cu lvert Replacement 12-DG-11100420-005 10.665 

Emerald Cove Trail Restoration 12-DG -111 00410-015 10.665 

Passed through the State of Alaska Department of 

Commerce, Community and Economic Development -

National Forest Receipts 811207 10.665 

Total De partment of Agriculture 

Depa rtment of the Interior 

Passed through t he State of Alaska Department of 

Co mme rce, Community and Economic Development : 

CIAP Shakespeare Creek Restoration Project F12AF00059 15 .668 

Payment in Lieu of Taxes 841509 15 .226 

Tot a l Depart ment of the Interior 

Department of Ho mela nd Security 

Assist ance to Firefighters EMW -2013-F0-02201 97.044 

Total Federal Financial Assistance 
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Federal 

Total Share of 

Grant Ex pen-

Award di tu res 

s 14,281 ,430 s 1,530,263 

435 ,490 15 ,594 

25 ,567 7,993 

42,976 42,976 

66 ,563 

28 , 182 27,730 

42 ,002 42,002 

69,732 

8,550 2,700 

s 1,669 ,258 



Exhibit 1-2 

City of Whittier, Alaska 

Schedule of State Financial Assistance 

Year Ended December 31 , 2014 

State 

Grant Grant Share of 

State Gran t Tit le Number Award Expenditures 

Department of Commerce, Community and 

Economic Development 

* Community Revenue Sharing 2015 $ 107,212 $ 107,212 

Shared Fisheries Business Tax 2014 32,608 32,608 

* Shotgun Cove Road Phase Ill 12-DC-435 400,000 400,000 

• Shotgun Cove Road Phase IV 13-DC-508 2,000,000 325 ,561 

Construction of Public Safety Complex 15-RR-051 2,394,843 32,618 

Railroad Station Improvements 1 O-DC-032 325,000 30,612 

Total Department of Commerce, Community 

and Economic Development 928 ,611 

Department of Revenue 

• Commercial Passenger Vessel Tax 2014 CPV 950,635 771 ,781 

• Fish Business / Landing Tax FY14 133,884 133,884 

Revenue Share Liquor Licenses FY14 5,600 5,600 

Motor Vehicle Tax FY14 4,542 4,542 

Electric and Telephone Cooperative Tax FY14 3,773 3,773 

Total Department of Revenue 919,580 

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities 

• Harbor Faciliti es 15-HG-001 1,973,750 197,375 

Department of Administration 

* PERS Relief 2013 283, 990 283, 990 

Total State Financial Assistance $ 2,329 ,556 

*Major program 

63 



City of Whittier, Alaska 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
and Schedule of State Financial Assistance 

Year ended December 31, 2014 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and the schedule of state financial 
assistance (the " Schedules") include the federal and state grant activity of City of Whittier, Alaska 
under programs of the federal government and State of Alaska for the year ended December 31 , 
2014. The information in the Schedules are presented in accordance with the requirements of 
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Ci rcular A-133 , Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations and the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for 
State Single Audits. Because the Schedules present only a selected portion of the operations of 
City of Whittier, Alaska , they are not intended to and do not present the financial position, 
changes in net position or cash flows of City of Whittier, Alaska. 

Expenditures reported on the Schedules are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

2. Commercial Passenger Vessel Tax 

Commercial Passenger Vessel Tax is remitted to the City from the State of Alaska. The cash 
receipts are recorded directly to revenue . Expenditures are reported only as the funds are 
expended for the legally authorized purposes. In 2014 the City received remittances of $950,635 , 
while total expenditures were $771 ,781. At December 31 , 2014 the City has restricted $4,137,599 
for cruise ship projects as follows : 

Cruise Ship Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Small Boat Harbor Enterprise Fun 

64 

$2,334,974 
1 ,802,625 

$4.137,599 



Single Audit Section 
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IBPQ Tel: 907-278-8878 
Fax: 907-278-5779 
www.bdo.com 

3601 C Street, Suite 600 
Anchorage, AK 99503 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Whittier, Alaska 

We have audited , in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States , the financial 
statements of the governmental activities , the business-type activities, each major fund , and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Whittier , Alaska , as of and for the year 
ended December 31 , 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements , which collectively 
comprise City of Whittier's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
August 24, 2015. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of 
Whittier's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the financial statements , but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of City of Whittier's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of City of Whittier's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified . However, as described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs , we identified certain deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees , in the normal course of performing their assigned functions , to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies , in internal control , such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity ' s financial statements will not be 
prevented , or detected and corrected , on a timely basis . We consider the deficiencies 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2014-001 , 
2014-002 , 2014-003 and 2014-004 to be material weaknesses . 

BOO USA, LLP , a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BOO International limited, a UK company limited by guarantee. and forms part of the 
international BOO network of independent member firms. 

BOO is the brand name for the BOO network and for each of the BOO Member Finns. 
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies , in internal control that 
is less severe than a material weakness , yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance . We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs as item 2014-005 to be a significant deficiency. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Whittier ' s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws , regulations, contracts, and grant agreements , noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit , and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion . The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

City of Whittier's Response to Findings 

City of Whittier ' s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Whittier ' s response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and , 
acc;ordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
t he entity' s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose . 

Anchorage, Alaska 
August 24, 2015 
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IBDO Tel: 907-278-8878 
Fax: 907-278-5779 
www.bdo.com 

3601 C Street, Suite 600 
Anchorage, AK 99503 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Whittier, Alaska 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited City of Whittier 's (the City's) compliance with t he types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the City's major federal programs for the year ended 
December 31 , 2014. The City 's major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirement s of laws, regulations , 
contracts , and grants applicable to its federal programs . 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Whittier's major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America ; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards , issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133 , Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those 
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred . An audit includes examining, on a test basis , evidence about the City's compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's 
compliance . 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion , City of Whittier complied , in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended December 31 , 2014. 

BOO USA, LLP , a Delaware limited liabilit y partnership, is the U.S. member of BOO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee. and forms part of the 
international BOO network of independent member firms. 

BOO is the brand name for the BOO network. and for each of the BOO Member Finns. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of City of Whi ttier is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Whittier 's internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for 
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 , but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented , or detected 
and corrected , on a timely basis . A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is 
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of th is section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identi fy any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses . However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133 . Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Anchorage, Alaska 
August 24, 2015 
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IBDO Tel: 907-278-8878 
Fax: 907-278-5779 
www.bdo.com 

3601 C Street, Suite 600 
Anchorage, AK 99503 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program and 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the State of Alaska 
Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Whittier, Alaska 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 

We have audited City of Whittier's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single 
Audits that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Whittier's major state 
programs for the year ended December 31 , 2014. City of Whittier 's major state programs are 
identified in the accompanying Schedule of State Financial Assistance. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts , and grants applicable to its state programs . 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Whittier's major 
state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America ; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards , issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits. Those 
standards and the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single 
Audits require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred . An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Whittier's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major state program . However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of 
Whittier's compliance. 

BOO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BOO International Limited , a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BOO network of independent member firms. 

BOO is the brand name for the BOO network and for each of the BOO Member Finns. 
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Opinion on Each Major State Program 

In our opinion, City of Whittier complied , in all material respects , with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major state programs for the year ended December 31 , 2014. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of City of Whittier is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Whittier's internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each major state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
state program, and t9 test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with 
the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance . 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Whittier's internal 
control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requi rement of a state program on a timely basis . A material weakness in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected , on a timely basis . A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is 
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance . 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance t hat might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identi fy any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single 
Audits. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Anchorage, Alaska 
August 24, 2015 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year ended December 31, 2014 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor 's report issued : 

Internal control over financial reporti ng : 
Material weakness (es ) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Financial Assistance 

Internal control over major federal programs : 
Material weakness( es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
major federal programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 

Unmodified 

....!:_yes 

....!:_yes 

__ yes 

__ yes 
__ yes 

Unmodified 

in accordance with Section 51 O(a) of Circular A-133? __ yes 

Identification of major federal programs: 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster Agency 

no 
__ none reported 

X no 

X no 
X none reported 

X no 

20.205 Highway Planning and Construction Depart ment of Transportation 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

State Financial Assistance 

Internal control over major state programs: 
Material weakness ( es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Type of auditor ' s report issued on compliance for major state 

__ yes 

yes 
yes 

programs: Unmodified 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish a state 
major program 
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$ 75 ,000 

$ 300,000 

X no 

X no 
....!:...__none reported 



City of Whittier, Alaska 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued 
Year ended December 31, 2014 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings Required to be Reported in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 

Finding 2014-001 

Criteria: 

Condition : 

Context: 

Effect: 

Cause : 

Recommendation: 

Grant Reconciliation - Preparation of the Schedule of Federal Awards 
and Schedule of State Financial Assistance - Material Weakness over 
Financial Reporting 

State and federal single audit rules and regulations require that the City 
undergo a single audit in any year in which state or federal financial 
assistance exceeds $500,000. The determination of assistance is based on 
expenditures during the year. Management must reconcile expenditures 
in t he general ledger to expenditures reported to the granting agencies 
and prepare a complete and accurate Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards and a Schedule of State Financial Assistance. 

During the year the City recorded transactions affecting multiple State 
and Federal grants. The accounting for these transactions was not always 
properly recorded or reported on the required schedules . There were 
several journal entries that incorrectly adjusted grant expenditures at 
year end. 

The City recorded five grant adjustments at year end which resulted in 
grant expenditures reported on the Schedule of Federal Awards and the 
Schedule of State Financial Assistance to be incorrect . 

Several adjustments were required to properly reconcile grant 
receivables , grant expenditures, and grant revenue in the general ledger 
and to correctly report expenditures in the Scheduled of Federal Awards 
and the Schedule of State Financial Assistance. 

The ending balances of grants and the preparation of the State and 
Federal Grant Expenditure Schedules were not reconciled to the 
underlying grant reports . There was no review of the journal entries to 
detect the inaccuracies of the entries being made. 

We recommend management establish a review process to aid in ensuring 
the accurate preparation of the Schedule of State Financial Assistance 
and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. These two schedules 
should be reconciled to the amounts reported in the general ledger and 
to the amounts reported on the drawdown or pay requests . Additionally, 
journal entries should be reviewed for accuracy. 

Views of responsible Refer to the corrective action plan. 
officials and planned 
corrective actions : 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued 
Year ended December 31, 2014 

Finding 2014-002 Lease Income - Lease Schedule Preparation and Lease Agreements -
Material Weakness over Financial Reporting 

Criteria: Internal controls should be in place to prevent or detect and correct 
financial statement misstatements and to produce accurate financial 
reports. 

Condition : The City administers several lease agreements under both short and long­
term lease arrangements. During our audit of lease revenue, we noted 
several missing lease agreements and no apparent consistent method of 
billing or review of lease payments. Lease revenue is being recorded when 
received , and not necessarily when earned as required by generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

Context: During our testwork we requested several lease documents to substantiate 
lease revenue. These items were initially not available for our review and 
were not maintained by the City 's accountant. In addition , there were 
several large and unusual journal entries recorded to the general ledger 
which were attempts to record lease credits . As a result of these entries, 
the audit trail was very difficult to follow and the accountant could not 
provide a clear explanation of why revenue was moved out of one fund 
and into another. 

Effect : A material journal entry was required to reclassify revenue back to its 
original location . Substantial audit resources were required to verify the 
material accuracy of the lease revenue balances. 

Cause: There are no internal controls in place to ensure that lease revenue is 
recorded properly or that lease agreements are maintained. 

Recommendation : Lease agreements should be prepared with each new lease term and a 
signed copy of the lease be maintained by the City. The City should 
prepare and monitor an accurate schedule of leases so that revenue can 
be properly recorded. In addition, the City should undergo a detailed 
review of all existing leases and ensure that a billing and tracking process 
is put into place. If revenues are to be assigned to a different fund , these 
items should be clearly documented by management. 

Views of responsible Refer to the corrective action plan . 
officials and planned 
corrective actions: 

74 



City of Whittier, Alaska 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued 
Year ended December 31, 2014 

Finding 2014-003 

Criteria : 

Condition : 

Context: 

Effect: 

Cause: 

Recommendation: 

Views of responsible 
officials and planned 
corrective actions: 

Finding 2014-004 

Criteria: 

Accounting and Reporting for Capital Projects - Material Weakness 
over Financial Reporting 

Internal controls should be in place to prevent or detect and correct 
financial statement misstatements and to produce accurate financial 
reports. Construction work in process reported for governmental 
activities and enterprise fund activities should be complete and include 
only those projects that have not been placed in service and should not 
include activities that are not going to result in an asset. 

Certain enterprise fund projects were incorrectly reported in 
governmental activities capital assets. Certain projects that were 
completed and placed in service were not removed from the construction 
in progress ledger and some capital project expenditures were not 
reported in capital assets at all. 

During our review of capital assets we noted several errors in the capital 
asset records as noted in the condition. 

Material adjustments were required to complete the yearend financial 
statements in accordance with GAAP for both governmental and 
enterprise related capital assets . 

It appears that there was poor communication between the accountant 
(who is primarily responsible for the accounting records) and the persons 
at the City responsible for management of the projects . 

The City should work to ensure communication between the capital 
project management team and the accounting office. Each project 
should be clearly identified as related to governmental activity or 
enterprise activity. As projects progress, management should 
communicate when the assets are essentially complete or ready to be 
place in service . Keep in mind that even if a grant is not closed out, the 
asset may be "in service" if any significant portion of the assets is being 
used for its intended purpose. At year end, a complete and through 
reconciliation should be performed to ensure that all capital project 
expenditures are reviewed for appropriate capitalization in in the fixed 
asset records . Management should review the capital asset schedules for 
completeness and accuracy. 

Refer to the corrective action plan . 

Accounts Payable Cutoff - Material Weakness over Financial Reporting 

Internal controls should be in place to prevent or detect and correct 
financial statement misstatements and to produce accurate financial 
reports. Expenditures should be recorded in the period when services 
are received. 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued 
Year ended December 31 , 2014 

Condition : 

Context : 

Ef fect : 
Cause : 

Recommendation : 

Views of responsible 
offic ials and planned 
corrective actions: 

Findjng 2014-005 

Criteria: 

Condi tion : 

Context : 

Effect : 

Cause: 

Recommendation: 

Views of responsible 
officials and planned 
corrective actions: 

Certain expenditures were recorded in 201 5 that should have been 
recorded in 2014. 

A material adjustment was made to accrue for services provided by a 
contractor in 2014, but not paid until March 2015. 

Current year expenditures were understated . 
There are no cutoff procedures in place to ensure the invoices received 
after year end are reviewed adequately to determine what year the 
expenditure belongs in . 

Formal cutoff procedures be established and put in writing so that 
expenditures are recorded in the period in which they are incurred. 

Refer to the corrective action plan. 

Journal Entries - No Review of the Preparation and Posting of Journal 
Entries - Significant Deficiency over Financial Reporting 

Internal controls should be in place to prevent or detect and correct 
financial statement misstatements and to produce accurate financial 
reports . 

Throughout the year, journal entries posted to the general ledger were 
prepared and posted by a single person with no management review. 

Journal entries being prepared and posted by one individual should be 
reviewed by management to ensure that the journal entries are 
appropriate and necessary to the financial statements and correctly 
reflect the transactions. 

During our audit we noted several incorrect j ournal entries recorded in 
the general ledger. Several adjustments were required to properly state 
various accounts within the general ledger. 

The City did not have an effective control in place to identify and 
evaluate whether the journal entries were appropriate and necessary. 

The City should establish a process of mont hly review of all journal 
entries that have been prepared and posted . This review should be 
completed by the City Manager or other qualified person within 
management to ensure that all entries made are appropriate and 
necessary. This review process should be documented to evidence the 
necessary control. 

Refer to the corrective action plan . 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued 
Year ended December 31, 2014 

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no findings and questioned costs for federal awards (as defined in section .510(a) of 
the Circular) that are required to be reported . 

Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no findings and questioned costs for State awards (as defined in the State of Alaska 
Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits) that are required to be reported. 
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City of Whittier, Alaska 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
Year ended December 31 , 2014 

Federal Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no prior year federal award findings . 

State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs 

There was no state single audit in the prior year. 
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THE CITY OF WHITTIER 
Gateway to the Western Prince William Sound 

'P.O. Box 608 • Wh.lttler, Alaska 99693 • (907) 472-2327 •Fax [907) 472-2404 

Corrective Action Plan 
December 31, 2014 

Name of Contact Person : Mark Lynch 
Ci ty Manager 
(907) 472-2327 

Finding 2014-001 

Corrective Action 

Completion Date 

Finding 2014-002 

Corrective Action 

Complet ion Date 

Financial Statement Findings 

Grant Reconciliation - Preparation of the Schedule of Federal Awards 
and Schedule of State Financial Assistance - Material Weakness over 
Financial Reporting 

The City of Whittier management will establish a review process to ensure 
the accurate preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
and Schedule of State Financial Assistance, and the reconciliation to the 
amounts reported in the general ledger, along with all supporting 
documentation on the drawdowns or pay requests. Additionally, 
management will review journal entries to ensure accuracy. 

In-progress, 2015 

Lease Income - Lease Schedule Preparation and Lease Agreements -
Material Weakness over Financial Reporting 

The City management will maintain on file signed copies of all leases, and 
prepare lease agreements with each new lease; perform a detailed review 
of all existing leases and ensure that a billing and tracking process is in 
place; and also prepare and maintain an accurate lease schedule, with 
notable billing dates, lease terms, lease payment amounts, along with 
assignment to the correct fund. 

In-progress, 2015 

79 

~~---------------------~ 



Finding 2014-003 

Corrective Action 

Completion Date 

Finding 2014-004 

Corrective Action 

Completion Date 

Finding 2014-005 

Corrective Action 

Completion Date 

City of Whittier 
Corrective Action Plan , continued 

December 31, 2014 

Accounting and Reporting for Capital Projects - Material Weakness over 
Financial Reporting 

The City management will maintain communication . Each project will be 
identified as relating to governmental activity or enterprise activity and 
shown correctly on the general ledger. As capital projects progress, city 
management will communicate with capital project management team, 
including the accounting staff, when the assets are essentially complete or 
ready to be placed in service, or if any significant portion of the asset is 
being used for the intended purpose. At year end a complete and thorough 
reconciliation will be performed to ensure that all capital project 
expenditures are reviewed for appropriate capita lization in the fixed asset 
records. The capital asset schedule will be reviewed by management for 
completeness and accuracy and reconciled to the general ledger. 

In-progress, 2015 

Accounts Payable Cutoff - Material Weakness over Financial Reporting 

The City will establish an effective year-end cut off procedure, in writing , 
to ensure that expenditures are recorded accurately in the period which 
they were incurred. 

In-progress, 2015 

Journal Entries - No Review of the Preparation and Posting of Journal 
Entries - Significant Deficiency over Financial Reporting 

The City will establish a process of monthly review of all journal entries 
that have been prepared and posted, and reviewed by the City Manager or 
other qualified delegate, and documented to evidence necessary control. 

In-progress, 2015 
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